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BEFORE THE 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 


DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 


In the Matter of the Accusation Against: 

Stephen Roger Raber 
aka Steven Raber 
580 Meadowlawn 
Saginaw, MI 48604 

Pharmacist License No. RPH 39275 

Respondent. 

Case No. 3968 

DEFAULT DECISION AND ORDER 

[Gov. Code, §11520J 

FINDINGS OF FACT 

1. On or about May 27,2011, Complainant Virginia Herold, in her official capacity as 

the Executive Officer of the Board of Pharmacy, Department of Consumer Affairs, filed 

Accusation No. 3968 against Stephen Roger Raber (Respondent) before the Board of Pharmacy. 

(Accusation attached as Exhibit A.) 

2. On or about April 2, 1985, the Board of Pharmacy (Board) issued Pharmacist License 

No. RPH 39275 to Respondent. The Pharmacist License expired on April 30, 2009, and has not 

been renewed 

.3. On or about May 27,2011, Respondent was served by Kate Ya, an employee of the 

Department of Justice, copies of the Accusation No. 3968, Statement to Respondent, Accusation, 

Request for Discovery, Notice of Defense, Copies ofGovermnent Code section 11507.5,11507.6 

and 11507.7 at Respondent's address ofrecord which, pursuant to Business and Professions Code 

section 4100, is required to be reported and maintained with the Board, which was and is: 
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580 Meadowlawn, Saginaw, MI 48604. 

4. Service of the Accusation was effective as a matter oflaw under the provisions of 

Government Code section 11505, subdivision (c) andlor Business & Professions Code section 

124. 

5. On or about June 20, 2011, the aforementioned documents were returned by the U.S. 

Postal Service marked "attempted not known." The address on the documents was the same as 

the address on file with the Board. Respondent failed to maintain an updated address with the 

Board and the Board has made attempts to serve the Respondent at the address on file. 

Respondent has not made himself available for service and therefore, has not availed himself of 

his right to file a notice of defense and appear at hearing. 

6. Government Code section 11506 states, in pertinent part: 

(c) The respondent shall be entitled to a hearing on the merits if the respondent 
files a notice of defense, and the notice shall be deemed a specific denial of all parts 
ofthe accusation not expressly admitted. Failure to file a notice of defense shall 
constitute a waiver ofrespondent's right to a hearing, but the agency in its discretion 
may nevertheless grant a hearing. 

7. Respondent failed to file a Notice of Defense within 15 days after service upon him 

of the Accusation, and therefore waived his right to a hearing on the merits of Accusation No. 

3968. 

8. California Government Code section 11520 states, in pertinent part: 

(a) If the respondent either fails to file a notice of defense or to appear at the 
hearing, the agency may take action based upon the respondent's express admissions 
or upon other evidence arid affidavits may be used as evidence without any notice to 
respondent. . 

9. Pursuant to its authority under Government Code section 11520, the Board finds 

Respondent is in default. The Board will take action without further hearing and, based on the 

relevant evidence contained in the Default Decision Evidence Packet in this matter, as well as 

taking official notice of all the investigatory reports, exhibits and statements contained therein on 

file at the Board's offices regarding the allegations contained in Accusation No. 3968, finds that 

the charges and allegations in Accusation No. 3968, are separately and severally, found to be true 

and correct by clear and convincing evidence. 
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10. Taking official notice of its own internal records; pursuant to Business and 

Professions Code section 125.3, it is hereby determined that the reasonable costs for Investigation 

and Enforcement is $892.50 as of June 30, 201l. 

DETERMINATION OF ISSUES 

1. Based on the foregoing findings of fact, Respondent Stephen Roger Raber has 

subjected his Pharmacist License No. RPH 39275 to discipline. 

2. The agency has jurisdiction to adjudicate this case by default. 

3. The Board of Pharmacy is authorized to revoke Respondent's Pharmacist License 

based upon the following violations alleged in the Accusation which are supported by the 

evidence contained in the Default Decision Evidence Packet in this case.: 

a. Respondent is subject to disciplinary action under section 4301 (f), (k),. (I), and G) in 

that he was convicted of crimes substantially related to the practice of pharmacy. On or about 

October 9,2008, in United States ofAmerica v. Steven Raber, he pled guilty to a violation of 18 

U.S.C. § 2252 A (a)(5) (possession of child pornography) and 21 U.S.C. (a)(1) (unlawful 

dispensing of a controlled substance) Respondent was sentenced to imprisonment for a total term 

of 37 months. 

b. Respondent is subject to disciplinary action under section 4301(n) in that he was 

disciplined by the Michigan Board of Pharmacy. On or about April 8,2009, in the Matter of 

Stephen Roger Raber, RPH number 53-02-025735 before the State of Michigan, Department of 

Community Health, Bureau of Health Professions, Board of Pharmacy Disciplinary 

Subcommittee, Respondent's Pharmacist License was suspended for a minimum of six months 

and one day. It was ftlJ.-ther ordered that reinstatement of the license may not be sooner thai'1 90 

days prior to the end of the suspension and he must meet the minimum requirements of 

reinstatement by clear and convincing evidence before his license may be reinstated 

ORDER 

IT IS SO ORDERED that Pharmacist License No. RPH 39275, heretofore issued to 

Respondent Stephen Roger Raber, is revoked. 

3 

DEFAULT DECISION AND ORDER 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

Pursuant to Government Code section 11520, subdivision (c), Respondent may serve a 

written motion requesting that the Decision be vacated and stating the grounds relied on within 

seven (7) days after service of the Decision on Respondent. The agency in its discretion may 

vacate the Decision and grant a hearing on a showing of good cause, as defined in the statute. 

This Decision shall become effective on September 15,2011. 

It is so ORDERED August 16,2011. 

A {. 
STANLEY C. WEISSER, BOARD PRESIDENT 
FOR THE BOARD OF PHARMACY 
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS 

lon0978.DOC 
DO] Matter ID:SA201 1100205 

Attachment: 
Exhibit A: Accusation 
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Xn the Matter ·ofthe Accusation Against:, 

Stephen Roger Raber 
aka'Steven Raber 
580 Meadowlawn 
Saginaw, MI 48604 

Pharmacist License No. RPH 39275 

Respondent.

Case No. 3968 

ACCUSATION 

 

KAMALA D. HARRIS 

Attorney General of California 

ARTHURD. TAGGART 
Supervising Deputy Attorney General 

,ELENA L. ALMANzo 
Deputy Attorney General 
State Bar No. 131058 
'1300 I Street, Suite 125 
P.O. Box 944255 ' 

Sacramento, CA 94244-2550 

Telephone:' (916) 322-5524 

Facsiinile: (916) 327-8643 


Attorneys for Complainant ' 

BEFORE THE 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 


DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMERAFFAIRS 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 


Complainant alleges: 


PARTIES 


1. ' Virginia Herold (Complainant) brings this Accusation solely in her official cap<:tcity 

as the Executive Officer of the B,oard of Pharmacy, Department of Consumer Affairs. 

2. On or about April 2, 1985, the Board of Pharmacy issued Pharmacist License Number 

RPB 39275 to Stephen Roger Raber aka Steven Raber (Respondent). The PharmaCist License 

expired on April 30, 2009, and has not been renewed. 
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Accusation 

JURlSDICTION 

This Accusation is brought before the Board of Pharmacy (Board), Department of 
. . 

3. 

er Affairs, under the authority of the followiJ;lg laws. All section references are to the 

Bu

Consum

siness. and Professions Code unless otherwise indicated. 

4. Section 4300 of the Code states in pertinent part: 


lI(a) Every license issued may be suspended or revoked. 


'l1(b) The board shall discipline the holder of any license issued by the board, whose default 


has been entered or whose case has. been heard by the board and found guilty, by any of the 

following methods: 

11 (1) Suspending judgment. .. 

11(2) Placing him or her upon probation. 

"(3) Su~pending his or her right to practice for a period not exc~eding one year. 

11 (4) Revoking his or her license. . 

11(5) Taking any other action in relation to disciplining him or her as the board in its 

discretion may deem proper. II 

5.· Section 4301 of the Code states: 

!lThe board shall take action against any holder 'of a license who is guilty ofunprofessional 

conduct or whose license has been procured by fraud or misrepresentation or issued by mistake. 
. I 

Unprofessional conduct shall include, but is not limited to, any of the following: 

!l(f) The co~ssion of any act involving moral turpitude, dishonesty, fraud, deceit, or 

corruption, whe~her the act is committed in the course of relations as a licensee or otherwise, and 

whether the act is a felony or misdemeanor or not. 

11 G) The violation of any ofthe statutes of this state, or any other state, . or ·of the United . 

States regulating controlled ,substances and dangerous drugs. 

11(k) The con:viction of more than one misdemeanor or any 'felony involving the use, 
. . 

consumption, or self-administration of any dangerous drug or alcoholic ~everage, o~ any 

combination of those substances. 
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"(1) The conviction of a crIme substantially related to the qualifications, furictions, and 

duties of a licensee under this chapter. The record of conviction of a violatio:p. of Chapter 13 
. . . 

(commencing with Section 801) of Title 21 of the United States Code regulating controlled 

substances or of a violation of the statutes of this state regulating controlled substances or 

dangerous drugs shall be conclusive evidence of unprofessional conduct. In all other cases, the 

record of conviction shall be conclusive evid~nce only of the fact that the conviction oecmed. 

The board may inquire into the circumstances surrounding. the commission ofthe crime, in order 

to fix the degree of discipline or; in .the case of a convicti6:o, not involving controlled substances 

or dangerous drugs, to determi~e if the conviction is of an offense substantially related to the. 
. . 

qualifications, ftmctions, and duties of a licensee under this chapter. A plea or verdict of guilty or 

a conviction following a plea of nolo contendere is deemed to be a conviction within the me.aning 

of tIlls provision. The board may take action when the time for appeal has elapsed, or the 

judgment of conviction has been affirmed on appeal or when an order granting.probation is made 

suspending the imposition of sentence, irrespective of a subsequent order under Section 1203.4 of 

·the Penal Code allowing the person to withdraw his or her plea of guilty and to enter a p~ea of not· 

guilty, or setting· aside the verdict of guilty, ·or dismissing the accusation, information, or 

indictment. 
. . 

"(n) The revocation, suspension, or other discipline by another state of a license to practice 

phamlacy, operate a pharmacy, or do any other act for which a license is required by this 

chapter. II . 

6. Section 125.3 of the Code states, in pertinent part, that the Board may request the 

administrative law judge to direct a licentiate fou:p.d to have committed a violation or violations of 

the licensing act to pay a sum. not to exceed the reasonable costs of the investigation and 

enforcement of the case. 
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FIRST CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 

(Conviction of Crimes) 

7. Respondent is subject to disciplinary action under section 4301 (f), (k), (1), and G) ~n 

that he was convicted of crimes substantially related to the practice ofpharmacy. The 

circumstances are as follows: 
. . 

8. On or about October 9, 2008, in United States ofAmerica v. Steven Raber, he pled 
. . . . 

guilty to a violation of 18 U.S.C. § 2252 A (a)(5) (posses~i()n of child pornography) and 21 

U.S.C. (a)(1) (unlawful dispensing of a controlled substance) Respondent was sentenced to 

imprisomnent for a total term of 37 months. 

SECOND CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 

( Out-of-State Discipline) 

" "9. Respondent is subject to disciplinary action under section 4301(n) in that he was 

dIsciplined by the Michigan Board ofPhannacy. The circumstances are as follows: 

10. On,or !ibout April 8,2009, in the Matter a/Stephen Roger Raber,RPH nuinber 53­

02-025735 before the State of Michigan, Department of Community Health, Bureau of Health 

Professions, Board of Pharmacy Disclplinary Subcommittee, Respondent's Pharmacist License 

was suspended for a'minimum of six months and one day. It was further ordered that 

reinstatement of the license may not be sooner than 90 days pDor to the end of the suspension and 

he must meet the minimum requirements of reinstatement by' c1earand convincing evidence 

before his license may be l;einstated. 

OTHER MATTERS 

11. To determine the degree of penalty, if any to be imposed on Steven Roger Raber, 

Complainant alleges that on December 23, 1992, in a prior disciplinary,proceeding entitled In the 

,Matter of the Accusation Against: Stephen Roger R(j.ber; Case No 1588, License No. RPH 

39275, issued to Respondent Stephen Roger Raber was revoked; 'however, revocation was stayed 

'and the license retained by Stephen Roger Raber was placed on threeyears probation, with a 

period of one hundred-twenty (120) days actual suspension,. (A copy of the Decision in the prior 

disciplinary proceeding,is attached hereto as Exhibit A) 
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PRAYER 

WHEREFORE, ComplaiJ;J.ant'requests that a hearing be held on the matters herein alleged, 

and that followmg the he~irig, the Board ofPharmacy issue a decision: 

1. Revoking or suspending Pharmacist License Number RPH 39275, issued to Stephen 

Roger Raber aka Steven Raber; 

2. Qrdering Stephen Roger Raber aka Steven Raber to pay the Hoard of Pharmacy the 

reasonable costs of the investigation and enforcement of this ~ase, pursuant to Business and 

Professions Code section""125.3'; and, 

3. Taking such other and further action as deemed necessary and proper. 

DATED: -'--=" "':?=--"-t-"'!Z",,-J...L-"P--JllJ~-
" , 

Exec· fficer 
Board ofPharmacy 
Department of Consumer Affairs 
State of California 
Complainant 

SA2011100205 
10699227.doc 
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Decision Board ofPharmacyCase No. 1588 
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DAN.IEL E. LUNGREN, .Attorn.ey General 

o£ the State of California 


JOEL S. .PRIMES 

Supervising Deputy Attorney General 


CONSTANCE M. BARTON 

Deputy Attorney General 


1515 K Street, Suite 511 . 

~. O. Box 944255 

Sacramento, California 94244-2550 

Telephone: (9.16) 324-5363 


Attorneys for Complainant 

BEFORE THE 
'BOARD OF 'PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS' 
.STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

.In the Matter of the Accusati9n ) No. 1588 

Aga:iTIst: ) 


. ) . 
STEPHEN ROGER RABER· ) STIFULA~IONT DECISION 
458 1: .She·l~drake Circle. ) .AND ORDER 
Fresno, CA .937.2D-:12.29 ) 
.Li centia·te No. .RP.H3 9.2 7 5 ) . 

) 
'Respondent. ) 

--------------------------------) 
. STEPHEN- ..ROGER RABER (.respondent) and complainant 

P.atricia Florian Harris, .in her o££.ic.ial capacity as Executive 

Officer of ·the·Board of Pharmacy, Department o:f Consumer Af.f.aiis, 

through her a·ttorney I, Constance .M. ·:Barton, :Deputy .Attorney 

General, stipulate ·as :follows: . 

:1, Accusation .No.· 1588 has been :Eiled and ~Lrved on! e . ~ 
~..,". :s: ,.. .; ~ 

respondent py. certi:E.ied mail. Said accusation is 'inco porat~d·~ t ~: ~ 
-	 ~:O'l'''' . 0 ." ctherein by .r::eference as though fully set :forth. .REfPon, .en~ is. ~ ~ ~; ~ ~ 

iii . low -l ? a: ~ =. 

. .. . .i.l oI!l ~ ~: ;,.} Q


registered as a .pharmacist ~ythe Board o£ Pharma~ I _aro. s. ;.~ ~ 2: j ~ 


-' t· -"'"'.'::>!Io­
subject to the jurisdiction of the Board regardin~the! ma-u:ter~ ~ 2 2:;:' ~ 

~ e j.' :;; 8~>,: 6S
' . . 	 !;'" QI' ~;<~;-;:e~a 11eged l.n the aCCllsatlon. 	 £ ~ B! ...;;:;::: ~'._ !;? ~ 

a~:-l ~~ .. ,...~
A),... ...... ! .... r..,.0frJ'~;.... '~(\i' 

;. ~~ .,:: . 10 . ~ 1. ~ ~ ~ 
.!!! : ,_, .,.. v ._.•. 'wi 
:;" '.. ~ -:: ........ ¥-""'1 '-I -" .. _­.;-;.:::; .> ...;oi ~ 

1. . 	 ~lU'" = Q'WI-l ;.. 
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.2. Respondent may retai'n counsel to discuss the 

charges and allegations of violations of the Business and 

~.rofessions Code alleged in the Accusation. Respondent is aware 

that under ·the Adm'inistrative Procedure Act and the laws .and 

regulations of the State .of California, there is the right ·to 

hearing and cross-examina·tion I and the right to reconsidera·tion, 

judi.cial review and appeal of any adverse decision that might be 

.rendered following such a hearing . Respondent knowingly and 

.intelligentl'y waives' these .rights, and waives :f iling a Notice of 

.Defense or request for he-a~ing. 

3 . Respondent' 'admits the al'legat.i, ons .inthe accusation 

and that cause exis·ts -thereby to i~pose di'scipline upon his 

~icense under :Bus.iness and Professions Code section-4350. 5 

. (hereafter the II codeU) .for unprofess.ion·al conduct as fol10ws: 

'PRESCRIPT.ION INCIDENTS 

4. On or about April 1989 to on or about March 199.1., 

while 	working at Von IS :Fharmacy41:1'8 7, at 31.90 ·E. Tulare .Avenue'! 

. . 


F.resno I California, 'respondent engaged in conduct des cribed as 

'follows: 

Respondent :filled ·and dispensed prescri.ptions 'for AZT 

and Acyc'lovir .for an AIDS patient who could not· Fay for the 

prescri;ptions. In order ·to reimburse Von I s Pharmacy 'for the· cost. 

of :filling these' prescriptions, .respondent .fraudulently billE:!d. 

.·Prescription Health .serv.ices f Inc. (.PHS) under the account number 

and 'names of meInbers of the Koogler family for various 'medica­

tions 'f.or which respondent forged 'prescriptions under the names 

of several. doctors. The Xooglers were enrolled in the Health 
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7,' As described in J>aragraph 4, respondent violated 

section. 4390 in that he signed the name's of prescribers, or 

falsely mads, altered, .forged, uttered~ published, passed, or 
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3. 


Plan -of Arner.i-ca.· (BPA) a health· maintenance pla~ which c-ontra-c·ted 

with PBS to process .prescriptions, The Kooglers were respon­

dent I s neighbors and had 'not given _respondent permiss.ion to 

misuse or bill their health maintenance plan, 

Respondent used the pharmacy's computer to process 

fictitious prescriptio'ns for various dangerou's drugs. Respondent 

also used the computer ·to p,rocess "re.fills 11 for prescript.ions 

or.iginally dispensed to but not refilled by the Koogler family. 

Respondent. also dispensed' dangerous drugs to other . 

individuals, some of whom were .poor or could not .speak English, 

including Hmong and Hispanics.' 

Responden~ 'forged prescriptions for Mevacor 20 'mg 1 

Tolectin I Cytotec, Tagamet;. " Cec16~, .Lomotil f Donnatal, Cef:tin I 

Penicillin 'VK, which are dangerous. drugs within the meaning of 

section 4211 of .the Code', 

5. As described in paragraph 4, respondent violated 

subd.ivision (c) of section 4350 . .5 by engaging in conduct that was 

inunoral, dishonest, frauduleTj:t, deceitiul -or corrupt i'n -the ­

course of working as a :pha.rmacist, 

6. As described in 'paragraph 4 , :respondent -v:io.lated 

section 4.351 by knowingly lIlaking o.r signing invoices submitted to 
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, ' 

attempted to pass as genuine f numerous prescrip:tions, fbr various 

dangerous drugs. 

8. As described in paragraph 4 f respondent violated 

section 4227 .by furnishing dangerous drugs to various ,individuals 

without a valid prescription. 

SUBSCRIPTION INCIDENTS 

9. On or about October lOr 1990! Mrs. Mae ,Bedrosian 

went to Von's l'harmacy :fI:187 located q.t 3190 E. ,TularE) Avenue, 

:Fresno, to arrange for a 'prescription ,to .be transferred from 
"\ 

another pharmacy. Mrs. ,Bedrosian .left Von '-s 'Pharmac:y ·a'fter 

.respondent who was the 'pharmac~st in charge, spoke to ,her in ,a 

disgusted:'volcean\i would ,not allow the 'pharmacy clerk to assist 

her any further. 'On or about the next day" Mrs. Bedrosian 

complained to the regional ,manager for Von's 'l'harrnaciesa.bo.ut 

respondent; s conduct toward 'her. ' 

About two weeks ,later Mrs. ,Bedrosian started to ,receive 

phone calls and various items in the mai'l whi"chno one at her 
" 

" 
,home had reques'ted . These itemsincluded pornograph,y, .magazi'nes [ 

:book orders r ':phone' calls from insurance agents, funeral 'pl'anning I 

hote,ls r and a p'ledge for $100. The ,requests, and subscriptions 

for these items were made by res.pondent either in his own 

handwriting , and/or l~y :manipulating the computer at 'Von '.s 

Pharmacy #187 , which contained a record o:f the Bedro,siaii.s' ·nQ.ltles, 

~ddress and telephone 'npmber, to generate labels which were 

placed on variOus subscriptions f order forms or requests. 

10. ,AB 'described in' paragraph 9, respondent violated 

subdivision (c) of'section 4.350.5 by engaging in ,.acts involving 

4. 

http:l'harrnaciesa.bo.ut
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moral tu+"pitude,'di-shonE?sty, fraud, deceit, or corruption, durin

his employment as a pharmacist in charge. 

-:11. As described in paragraph 9, respondent violated 

subdivision (a) of section 4350.5 by engaging in grossly immoral 

conduct. 

12. This Stipulation shall be subject to adoption by 

the Board at Pharmacy. .If the Board 'fails to pdopt this 

Stipulation, it shall have no force or -af.fect :Eor eithe'r party, 

and the matt'=3r will be regular'ly set :for hearing ~ 

WHEREFORE, i·t is stipulated that the Board of 'Pharmacy 

may is'sue .the :following order: 
'...1 

ORDER· 

-
Origi·nal Licentiate ,No. RPH 39.275 issued to Stephen 

Rogex: Raber is. hereby ,revoked; ,however, execution of ·this order· 
. . 	 . 

of :revocation sh·all be .stayed· and :res.po.ndent p~aced on :proba·tion 

for three years u,pon the.fel.lowing terms and conditions.:· 

1. 	 As .·part of probation r .respondent is sus,pended :f.rom 
. . 

the· practice of .pharmacy for :1.20 days beginning on ·.the ef'fective 

ciate of ·this decision. 

. Dur.ing said suspension, respondent shall .not enter 

any pharmacy prescription. area or any 'portion 6f ·the ~licensed 

premi:ses of .a wholesaler ,manufacturer or 'any other distributor 

of drugs which is .licensed by the Board and where dangerous d,rug~' 

or controlled substances are ·.maintained. Respondent shal.l ,not 

practic,e .pharmacy or do any .act· involving drug selection { 

selection of stock·, manu,facturing r compounding, dispensing or 

patient consulta-tioni nor shall ·respondent manage, administer, be 

g 
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6. 

a . consultant to o~ hav~ access to or control over the'ordering, 

mc;:in1,lfacturing or dispensation of dangerous drugs or controlled 

substances for anyone or any entity licensed .by- the Board. 

2. Within 60 ,days of 'the effective date of this 

decision, ·res'pondent shall submit to ·the Board, :for its prior 

approval, a community ~ervice'program in which respondent shall 

pr.ovide free health-care related services on a .regular basis, to a 

community or char.itable facility or agency for at least 10.0 hours 

over the 'first ·t;wo years of probation; , 

3. 'Respondent shall pay to the Board its costs of 

investigation and prosecution in the amount of $3, OOO,~ 00. 
. . 

Respondent .shall make said payment in 'full on or .before ·the 

e,f:fective dati? of this decision. Should any part o:f CO!?t 

recovery not, .be paid, probation shall be extended for ·the same 
) 

amount of ·time of any late.payment, from the e.f.fective da'te until 

said amount is paid in full. 

4. Obey All "Laws : Respondent shal.l' obey al.l federa;Ir' 
.' 

state and local laws, and all rules and regulations substantially 

related ·to the practice' of pharmacy.. 

5 ~ Reporting ·to the Board: ,,"Respondent shall r~port ·to 

the .Board or .its designee quarterly. Said report shall be either' 

in :person or in writing r as directed. Shou'ld the final 'probation 

report not be made ,as directed', 'the perio~ of probation shall, .be 

extended until such time as the final report 'is made. 

6. 'Peer "Review: Respondent shall submit to peer 

review as deemed necessary by the Board. 
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7. Conti.nuing Education.: Respondent shall provide 


evidence of efforts to ma~ntain skill and ~nowledge as a 


pharmacist· .as directed by the Board. 


8. Notice to Employers.: Respondent. shall notify all 

present a.nd prospective employers of this decision and order, 

and the terms, cond~tions and restrictions imposed on respondent 

by the decision and order. 

Within 30 days of the effective date of this 

d!==ci'sion, and within 15 days. of respondent' undertaking new 

employment,respC?ndent,shall cause. his ·or· her employer.to report 

·to the Board in writing ackn~wledging that the e~ployer has read 

the decision and order. 

Should respondent work £or 'or be employed by or 

through 'a pharmacy employment service, it· :shall .be the obligation 

of t,he respondent ·to :ensure that thepl!:artnac'y a.t which he 'or she 

is to be employed or used is informed of' ·the 'fact and terms of 

th~s' discip'linary order in advance of the respondent conunencing 

work at the pharmacy., 

. II Employment II within the .meaning of this provision 

shali include anyfull-time', part·-timei,· temporary or 'relief 

service as a pharmacist, whether the resp'ondent is considered an 

emp1o.yee or independent contractor.. 

.9. No Preceptorships, Supervision or Being Pharmacist~· 

il"!--Cha-rge: Respondent shall not. supervise any registered intern 

or technician and shall not perform any of the duties of a 

preo~ptor I nor s,hallrespondent be the -pharmacist-in-charge of . 

any pharmacy licensed by the Board. 

7. 

http:employer.to
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·.Board. ShouJ,d respondent I s certificate', by operation of law, or 

othe'rwise', expire, upon renewal or reinstatement respondent IS 

certificate shall be subject to any and a.ll terms of this 

probation 'not previously satisfied. 

12. Comply With Probation: Respondent· shall· 'fully and 

ompletel,y co~ply w.ith ·the :probation :prog.ram established , by the

Board and cooperate with representatives o.f the Board. 

1'3c
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15· 
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19. 

'10;'Tolling ~f Probation.: Should Respondent leave 

California t·o reside or practice outside of the State r Respondent 

inustnotify the Board in writing o£ the dates of' departure and 

return. Periods of residency outside of the State shall not 

apply ·to the reduction of this probationary tem. 

11. Status of License: Respondent shall, at all times 

while on probation, maintain.an active, current license with the 
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8. 

13 ..Violation of Probation: ..shouldRespondent violate 

probation iIi any .respect, the Board'r after giving .Respondent 

noti ce and· the opportunity to .be heard,. may revoke probation and 

car.ryout the disciplinary order that was stayed.. I'f a petition 

to .revoke probation or vacate stay .is :filed against Res.pondent 

during probation, ·the .Board. shall have continuing jurisdiction 

until the matte.r .is final, and the :period ·o.f .probation shall be 

extended until th£? matter is final . 

.14. Supplemental Accusation: If during the period ,of 

.probation, an accusation is filed against Respondentls' license·or 

the AttPrney General's Office is requested to prepa~e an 

accusation against Respondent I s license, s'uch period shall 

Ii r 
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automatically be extended and· shall'not expire' .until ·the 


accusation is acted upon by the Board . 


.15. ComDletion of probation: Upon successful 


completion o'f pr<?bation, Respondent's license will be fully 


restored. 

DANIEL
Att ,,), " --Gene'lS 1) ........ 

----' /' " 
ATED:I ,_---"-?_-...:.-/..;..L/_:.._9_;;)...__--'-- ---+-~ ~ =:~. 


", '.. '--CON .' : . . TON 
~
Deputy Attorney General 

, 

Attorneys 'for Complainant 

/~G'R:E-:N . 

 
......""'-' 

I have read this' Stipulation, Decision and Order in its 

entirety, and know 'that I may consult, with an attorney ,regarding 

.its contents. :I under::stand I 'have the right to a hearing on the 

charges contained.in ·the accusation, cross-examine witnessep, and 

int.roduce ev.idence in mitigation, as we~~ as ·the right to 

reconsideration, judicial review and appeal o'f af-lY adverse 

decision. J: knowingly and :intelligently waive all of ',these 
. .. 

:rights" and understand that by signing 'this stipulation, J: am. 

permitti'ng the .Board o.f Pha:tmacy ·to impose discipl.ine against ,my 

pharmacy permit and certificate of .licensure as a regist~red 

pharmacist. J: understand the .legal significance and consequences 

·thereof i and '1 fully understand a'U of, and agree to be .bound by 

the terms of said Stipu.lation r . Decision and Order .. 

DATED; t 7);J.­
I 

~.
'sTEHENR6ER ~R 

/z 

Respondent 

http:contained.in


ACCEPTANCE 

The foregoing stipulation .is accepted by the California 

state Board of Pharmacy and shall.constitute its decision .in 

this matter. 

This Decision shall become effective on December 23, 1992 . 

ITISsboRDERED______ __ __1_9~9_2______________________~_N_o_v~e_m_b~e_r 2_3~, 

BOARD OF :PHARMACY 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

.By ;f~ g,1J4
SriPHENbIBBLE . . 
"Board :President 
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D.~~UEL E. LUNGREN I Attorney General 
. lof the state' of California . 

'JOEL E. PRIMES . 
. Supervis'ing .Deputy Attorney General 

CONSTANCE lL . BARTON . 
Deputy AttDrney General. 

1515 K Street, .Suite 311 
P. O. Box 944255 . 
Sacramento, .California 94244-2550 
Telephone: (916) 324-5363 

Attorneys 'for Complainant 

. BEFORE .THE . 
.BOARD OF .PHARMACY. 

DEPARTHENT OF CONSUMER. AFFAr·RS 
STATE. OF C!,ALIFORNIA 

In 'the Matter of '~he Accusation 
Against: 

STEPHEN ROGER RABER 
4.58 E. ,Shel1drake C.:!.rcle 
.Fresno,. CA .93720-1229 
.Lioentiete No.· RPH3 9'2 7 5 . 

Respondent. 

-----------------------------) 
Patricia F. Harris, the' complainant herein, alleges as 

ollDws: . 
,r " 

.' 
.1. She is 

.. ' 

;the' EXBcuti
1 ~ 

va Officer of the Board' 'of 

.PharmacY of the sta.~e. C?f California (he.reinaiter :/~he 'Board;) and 
. ,I . 

makes. and' 'files ·...r..,his accusation solely ,in her official capacity 

as such and. not otherwise .. 

.2. On or about April 2, 1985 t respondent Stephen Roger 

Raber .wa$., issued .licentiate number RPH39275 to practice pharmacy 

) .No. 1588' 

.ACCUSATION 

. ) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
.) 

1.. 
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unger 'the laws of the State, of Cal~fornia; 'At alI 'times herein 
I 

sa,ld license was in full. force and effect and will expire on 

April ,30, 1993, unless renewed. 

3. Sections ,4350 and 4359 of the Busi.ness and 

Pro~essiDns Code (hereinafter the #Code ll ) provide that the Board 

may take disciplinary action a'gainst a licensee in the manner s'et 

,forth ~n said sections.' 

4. Section 4350 ..5, of 'the Codell prov.ides ,in pertinent 

'p~rt, "that the Board shall 'take action againf?,..t any. holder 0'£ a, 

certificate or ',license who ,is guil~y o~ t;Ulprofessional conduct.' , 

.Baid section further provides that u~professional oonduct shall 

,include', ,but is not limited to , vio1ating or attempting to 

violate, directl,Y or indireotly, or assisting in, or abetting,the 

violation of any provision ,or term of 'Chapter 9 of 'DivisIon ,2 of 

said Code or the applicable "federa'l or !State laws and 'regulations 
, , 

gov~rning pharmacy, 'inoluding 'regul'l'1t'ions established byt~e 

Board.' 

,PRESCRIPTION 'INCIDENTS 
" " 

5. Respo:r;.4ent 
" 
has admitted that from on or about April 

:19B9 to on or about March 1991[ while working at'Vonls Pharmacy 
\ 

f187; at 3190 E....~,ulare Avenue, Fres;no, Cali'fornia l he engaged in 

conduct described as follows: 

Respondent filled and dispensed prescriptions for ~ZT 

H 'All c1tations 'are to the Busines~ and Professions Code 
unless stated otherwise, 

:2. ' 



'-' 

(' 

anp Acyclovir for an AIDS'patient ,who could 'not pay for 'the , 
..;, 

pr'escriptions. In order toreimPurse Von I s Pharmacy .for the cost 

'of :filling these p:r:escriptlons f ,:respondent frauduiently billed 

Prescription He'alth Services ~ Inc. (PHS) under the account ';fiumber 

and names of members of the Koogler family for various 

medications for which ,respondent forged prescriptions under the 

names of several doctors. The Kooglers were enrolled in the 

Health Plan pf America '(HPA), a ,health maintenance plan which 

contracted with PHS' ,to ,process presc'riptions. The Kooglers were 

respondent I s neighbors and had' not., given respondent permission, tq 

misuse or 	bill ·their health maintenance plan.; 

Respondent 'used the .pharmacy's computer ,to :process 

ictitio'u8 .prescri,ptions 'for various dangerous dr~,gs.. Responde,nt 

also used the computer to process "refills" 'for prescri:Ptions 

originally dispensed to ,but no~ refilled by the ,Koc:>gler :family. 
,­

Respondent also di~penBed dangerous drugs to other 

ino.ividuals, some of whom. were poor or could not.. speak ,EI?-9lish, 

including Hm6ng and Hispanics. 

Respondent 'foi'ged, prescriptions ,for .Mevacor 20 ;rng, 

Tolectin, Cytotec, Tagametf,.:,Cecior,Lomotil, Donnatal, Ceftin, 
.(' 	 . . 

,r 	 . . '\ . 

Penicillin VR,whicl)",are 'dangE!rousdrugs within ·the meaning o~ 

section 4211 of the C~di. 

6. Respondent is subject to discipline for 
, 	 , 

unprofessional conduct'within,the meaning of section 4350.5 of 

the Code in that r as ~escribed in paragraph 5, he violated 

subdlvls:l.,On (c) of section 4~50.5 by engaginll ~n conduct that was 
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.f 

._\ ;. 

iIDtnoral,. dishonest,.frtiUd~1entf depeitful or corrupt inths. 
I 

course of working as ·a 
~, 

pharmacis'1:: ~ 

7. Respondent is subj.ect to discipline for ,. 

ilnprofessional conduct within the meaning of section 4350.5 of 

the Code in that, .as described in 'paragraph- ~, he violated 

section 4351 by knowingly 'making pr signing ~nvoices submitted to 

PHS for .reimbursement :for dangerous drugs whiqh were not aC,tual.1y 

dispensed. 

8. Respondent .is subject ·to discipline for 

unprofessional conduct within the meaning of section 43.50 .5 of 

the Code .in that, as described in' .para,graph:5, he 'v:iolated 

se;!ct.ion 4.3 90 .in ·that 'he signed the 'namas of prescribers ,or 

falsely made, a.lt":'lred, ,forged, uttered, pubiished; passed, or 

attempted to pass as genuine, .numerous prescriptlonafor various 

dangerous drugs. . 

.9 • Respondent is subject to discipline for 

unprofessipnal conduct with;!.nthe meaning of section 4350.5 in 
~ r r .' 

, f· . 

,that r,' as described~J1 ,.paragraph 5, he violated sect-ion 4227 .by 
" . . 

'r,,""''''' i sh ~ ..... rr ,..1"' .... ,.,.8....0·'6 drllGs .........6 _~ndividuals without i d
' ..........rious val_
_A- -~.:.:.- ........... ';;1 ...... &.06. .. "'':,1 .... It.ooL, ., Y 


prescription. 

SUBSCRIPTION INCIDENT§ 

10." On or about October :1 0 f 1990 ~ Mrs. Hae Bedrosian 

went to Vonls Pharmacy~187 located at 3190 E. Tulare Avenue, 

F.resno, 'i,o arrange for a prescription to be transferred from' 

4. 
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.1-4 .

·1 

2 

3 

4 

.5.

6 

7 

8 

,9 

10 

:1.1 

1.2 

13 

.( 

\ :. 

:. f 

an:Dthei·'phannacy. . Mr~. 'Bedrosian: lef·t Von I s Pharmacy after' 

.r.es pondent who was thepparmacist in charge, spoke to her .in a 

dl s gusted voioe and would not al.low the pharmacy olerk to assist 

her any ..further.. On or .about ·the next d~y, Mrs. Bedrosian 

 oomplained ·to the regional manager. for Vori I s Pharmacies about 

.respondent's conduct toward her. 

.About two weeks later Mrs. Bedrosian started to receive 

ph0ne oalls and 'various' items in the mail which' no one at her 

home had reg~ested. These i temsincluded ,pornograp~y, magazines, 

book ord~rB., phone calls from insurance a,gents, 'funera1planning, 

hotels, and, a pledge 'for $100. The ·requests·.. and subscriptions 

for these items were made 'by :respondent ei'ther in his own 

handwriting, and/or :~y manipu'lating the computer at Von' B 

.Pharmaoy.t.187 I whioh oontained III .record of 'the .Bedrosian I B names, 

address and t.elephone number ,to genera·te ~abe~s which we:re. 

placed on various subsoriptions I order 'forma or requests ., 

811. . Respondent is subjeot to discip'line .for 

unprofessionai oond~ot ~ith.in the meaning of section 4350,5 .in 

·that t' as desoribed .in para9r~phl0, .respondent violated 
. ,r' 

subdivision (c) of' .section 4.'350,5 by engaging in acts. involving 

moral ·turpitude, dishonesty I fraud, deceit, or corruption, during, 
his employment art!i'· ...·a 

1 

pharmacist in charge. 

.12,' Re,spondent ia subject -;:'0 discipline for 

unprofessional c'onduct within the meaning of section 4350:5 in 

that I a~';..,described in paragraph 10, respondent violated 
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su,pctivi,sion (a) o'f sectit>n 435'0.5 :by'engagingingrossly 
" 

'inunoral 
, --,

oo'nduot. 

13. Section ~367 sf the Code provides, in pertinent 

part, that any person whose license, permit or registration has 

been revoked or is under suspension, or haa been pIaoed on 

probation;. and while acting 'as such member, officer,' d'irector I 

associate, or partner had knowledge of or know~ngly participated 
, . 

in any conduct £qr which 'the lic'ense, 'permit or registration was 

rev~ked, ,sllsP!=,nded or"placed on probation, 'sh~ll be prohibited 

,from serving as an officer, dir,ector, a.ssocia,te or partner of a 

licensee, permit'tee or registrant. ' 

14. Pursuant, 'to the, ,~r(JvisionB of section 4367 of the 

Code, ..i;,n'the event that the license issued to .:respondent Stephen 

Roger Raber is ~uspBnded, r~voked or placed on :probation: said 

.respondent Stephell 'Roger Raber shall :be :prohibii;:ed from serving·· 

as an officer, director, associate or partn:er of any licensee, 

permittee or ,registrant in that said respondent had knowledge 'of 

or knowingly participated ,~p.' thea.'cts 'or omissions alleged 
.r .' 

he:r::'ein. 

, 
15', Sec:ti'ion 

, 1 

4366 provides that in any, order issued in 

resolution of a disciplinary prooeed~ng before ·the Board, the 

Board may request the adminlstrative law judge to direct aI'!-Y 

lioensee found guil'ty of a charg~ involving a significant 

'Violatio~ of section 4350,5 which .is also a violation, of section 

6. 
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III 

III 

III 
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• -~'1 

. "- "---- . 
(' 

42~7 I 4232, ar 4390 :ar section I11p3 ·af. the' Health and Safety 
, .,. 

Cqde to. pay to the Board a·sum not to exoeed the reasonable cost 

of the investigation and prosecution aftha case and," in any 

case, not to. exceed $25,000. u 

NOTICE ,IS HEREBY GIVEN .to stephen Reger Raber that the 

Board hereby requests the administrative .law, 'judge to. direct that 

if respondent is found ,gu~lty of ~ charge involving a significant 

violation of,sect~on 4350.5 of the Coda which i8 also a violation 

of se~tion ~227~ 4232 o~ 4390 of the, Cod~ er B~alth and Safety 

Code section 11153 to 'payto the Board a sum .net ,to. exceed' the 

reasonable cost' ef i,nvestigation andprOB6ctitieri oftha, case and 

not to·exceed $25,000. 

WHEREFORE, compl.ainant prays that the 'Board of Pharmacy 

,hold a hearing on 'the ma't'ters aileged .herein .and following said 

hear~ngissue a d~cision1 
~ 

1. Suspending o~ revoking 'the license, number RPH39275 

·to prac-:tice pharmacy issu13d to. r~sp'pI).~,~nt,. ,St~phen.·Roger .Raber;
_.' ~'''' .' ..... " .... ,...... ... . . . . 

2.' .Prohibitin,g Stephen Roger Raber from serving as an 

officer, director, associate or .p·artner of any licens'ee, 

,permittee or .registrant; .r'
-' 

" 
3. Requi:!;;l..ng'~respondent St~phan Roger Raber to. pa.y the 

Board the cost of investigation and prosecution in an amount 
I 
f 

according to.pr0O'f~ b,ut not to exceed .$25,000; and 

7. 
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y . 

4 . Taking such other ,and further action as may be·' 

proper. 
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DATED: .~17 )r;~ 

PATRICIA F. HARRIS 
Executive Offic~r 
Board of Phar.mac,Y 
Department of Consumer Affairs 
'State o~ California 

Complainant 
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